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CERTIFICATION

I, Shawn Woodhead Werth, Secretary and Clerk of the Federal Election

Commission, do hereby certify that on July 29, 2010, the Commission decided

by a vote of 5-0 to close the file, as recommended in the General Counsel's

Memorandum dated July 28, 2010.

Commissioners Bauerly, Hunter, McGahn II, Petersen, and Weintraub

voted affirmatively for the decision. Commissioner Walther recused himself with

respect to this matter and did not vote.

Attest:

Shawn Woodhead Werth /
Secretary and Clerk of the Commission



BEFORE THE FEDERAL ELECTION COMMISSION

In the Matter of )
)

Charles C. Brennan; Dollar Loan Center, ) MUR6246
LLC; Robert Brennan; Judi Brennan; )
Bruce Cooey, Carla Gooey; Porter for )
Congress and Chrissie Hastie, in her )
official capacity as treasurer )

«> CERTIFICATIQN
o&
O I, Shawn Woodhead Werth, Secretary and Clerk of the Federal Election
O
^ Commission, do hereby certify that on July 13,2010, the Commission decided
*r
*3 by a vote of 5-0 to take the following actions in MUR 6246:
O
° 1. Find no reason to believe that Charles C. Brennan and Dollar Loan
^ Center, LLC, violated 2 U.S.C. §§ 44 If; 441a(a) or 441b(a).

2. Find no reason to believe that Robert Brennan, Judi Brennan, Bruce
Cooey or Carla Cooey violated 2 U.S.C. § 441f.

3. Find no reason to believe that Porter for Congress and Chrissie
Hastie, in her official capacity as treasurer, violated 2 U.S.C. §§ 441f,
441a(i)for441b(a).

4. Approve the Factual and Legal Analysis, as recommended in the
Fust General Counsel's Report dated June 14,2010.

5. Approve the appropriate letters.

Commissioners Bauerly, Hunter, McGahn n, Peterson, and Weintraub

voted affirmatively for the decision. Commissioner Walther ionised himself with

respect to this matter and did not vote.

Attest:

Date Shawn Woodhead Werth
Secretary and Clerk of the C



FEDERAL ELECTION COMMISSION
WASHINGTON, D.C 20463

D. Scott Martinez, Esq. .ye $ 2010
Holland* Hart, LLP wv

^ P.O. Box 8749
M Denver, CO 80201-8749
O
<*> RE: MUR6246
JJ Charles Braman,er at

O Dear Mr. Martinez:
O
•"** On January 28,2010, the Federal Election Connnisskni ("flic ConnnissiorO notified your

clients of a complaint alleging violations of certain sections of the Federal Election Campaign
Actofl971,asamended. On July 14,2010,theOminiissionfouiid,ontheb8asofme
information in the complaint, and mfbrnmdon provided by your clients, thrt
believe that Charles Breonan and Dollar LoanCenter.LLC, violated 2 U.S.C. §§441^441(a) or
441b(a), or that Robert Breonan, Judi Bxtonan,BniccCooey or OriaO>oey violated 2 U.S.C.
§441f. Accordingly, <m July 29,2010, the Qrainission closed to n^

Documents related to the case wfll be placed on the publk record wrmin 30 days. See
Statement of Policy Regarding Disclosure of Closed Enforcement and Related Files,
68 Fed. Reg. 70,426 (Dec. 18,2003) and Statement of Polk^ Regarding Placing First Ckner^
Counsd's Reports (m the ftMcRcco^ The Factual and

7nmmi«ainn'« finrfinĵ  i« anelnted fiir ynair infamMtimn.

If you have any questions, please contact Wa&daD.Biown, the attorney assigned to this
matter at C202) 694-1650.

Sincerely,

Peter G.Btamberg
Assistart General Counsel

Enclosure
Factual and Legal Analysis



1 FEDERAL ELECTION COMMISSION
2
3 FACTUAL AND LEGAL ANALYSIS
4
S
6 RESPONDENTS: Charles C. Brennan MUR: 6246
7 Dollar Loan Center, LLC
8 Robert Brennan
9 Judi Brennan

10 Bruce Cooey
11 Carla Cooey
12 Porter for Congress and Christie Hastie,

cc> 13 in her official capacity as treasurer
14
IS I. INTRODUCTION

S 16 This matter was generated by a complaint filed with the Federal Election Commission by

17 Kjelden Cundiff, alleging violations of the Federal Election Campaign Act of 1971, as amended

18 (the "Act"), by Charles Brennan, Dollar Loan Center, LLC, Robert Brennan, Judi Breiman,

19 Bnice Cooey, Carla Cooey, and Porter for Congress and Chrissie Hastie, in her official capacity

20 as treasurer.

21 n. FACTUAL AND LEGAL ANALYSIS

22 A. Background

23 The complainant is a former employee of Dollar Loan Center where he was the

24 coinpejiy's National Director of CotnpUance. He claims that in October 2008, while employed

25 by Dollar Loan Center, his supervisor, Qiarles Brennan, called him and asked that he and his

26 wife each contribute $2,300 to the Porter for Congiess Qjimnittee (the l^ommhtec'IX the j

27 principal campaign committee of Jon C. Porter, Sr, a candidate in the 2008 election for United

28 States Representative from Nevada's 3d Congressional District Hie contributions were to

29 coincide with a visit by candidate Porter to the Dollar Loan Center stores. Brennan allegedly

30 Mftfr^tnMihMfrMiMlVi^nFrTl^^

AltHBIUHCIil
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1 indicated that other individuals, including Braman's parents, *Vere doing it as well." The

2 compiainant states that he told Brennan that he was not sure of the IcgaHty of the request, and

3 asked if he could mstead draw a check fiom the corporate account^

4 According to the coniplainant,Bieiman

K1 5 donated by an individual" and that "writing a €lieck from the IX>Uv Loan Center opentii^
rH

Jlj 6 account was not an option." The ccwnplaina^rt says that when he refused to make the
00
<\i 7 contributions, Bretman became agitated and stated that he would "get somebody else to do it."
<tf
^ 8 Although the complainant did not partidpate in the alleged reimbursement scheme, he
O
o 9 speculates that Brcooan may have rambursed his parerits, Robert and JudlBrennan, as well as*"*i

10 Bruce Cooey, the president of Dollar Loan Center, and his wife, CarlaCooey, for contributions

11 they made to te Committee on October 21 and 27,2008.' The complainant infers that Charles

12 Brennan reimbursed these four mdividuah because Brennm had o

13 reimbursement for a contribution to the (^)n^ttee dining the same time period that the

14 individuals made theffoontributiciis, and because Brennan had told hmi that h^

15 other individuals''wtredomg it as wellw In addition, the complainant questions whether the

16 alleged conduits would have contributed to the Coniimttee absent a reimburseinent because none

17 of the four mdmdiiab had ever before cctrt^

18 the mairimimi inrfivir^yil cntrtrihurinn of tt^OQ to the Committee. The Complainant 8JSO deemed

19 suspicious the net mat Bruce and Caria Cooey reside m South Dakota, outside of the candidate's

itfae
Ov own review of on GoininittM'sdbcloaurenpocti reveals that DO ofl^

aV^BM • IWItaaap 1 ^̂ MB ^Waflaw aMtMtlMuava*flav DwBIK B aWINaB aUOllD ^^vHavT vBa^VlWW*

Attachment
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1 Congressional district located in Nevada. Finally, the complainant states that the Committee's

2 disdosure reports inco^^

3 In responses to the complaint, submhted on February 22,2010, and supplemented on

4 AprU 30,2010 in response to a request for dari^

^ S Loan Center, and the alleged conduits claiins that the alkgations are speculative, aiid likely the

2 6 retaliatory artcm of a disgrunUedfbnn^ Cour^lexpJairis that Charles Brennan has
oo
™ 7 a history of <uianda11y«ipportiiig candidates tf

^ 8 only did Brennan himself make the mmrimum allowable contribution to Porter's Committee, he

^ 9 also encouraged his family, friends, awl business partners to coiitribute to tteC^mm

10 had the financial ability to do so. Breirnm admits that teaskri the c^^

11 the Comnuttec,b«deiriesdiat he offered to reimburse the cc^

12 Dollar Loan Center funds.4

13 Counsel also states m his original resrxinse that his finncoriducted an m

14 investigation into the allegations aol concluded that neither Bitrjnaniwr

15 reimbursed the conduits. In the supplemental response, ̂ chwajsubmhted in response to a

16 request tor clarification, <xnH^

The
Coannfttcc does not addrasftisappaaii mistake inltinqNiwioiheeoB«iUDL

to extort nMn0y from Braonan, and tepnfllfa^
bcludfagMUR 6246 wfththe PEC" Re^ModettdU not ipe^tbe types of ooaq)laii^i^
IbdaoptfUiely avdlabte iBfiMmatUiB n^^

•oUdtand receive cuiUfouik« from outikto of the rttovintd^
of the Act.

Attachment
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1 Bieraianaiid the alleged cxmottts, as well as a revi^

2 records.

3 The original response included sworn affidavits from the alleged conduits stating that

4 they had not been "offoedreimbursemenT^ their contributions to In response

u\ 5 to the request for clarification the coiidute
HI
Hl 6 they ixrt been uofferedrcimburserae^
o
rsj 7 advance payment or reimbursement for their coiraibutioiis to the Conmiittee from any person or
«̂ r
qr 8 entity. In his own original sworn affidavit, Charles Brexman attests that he did not offer any
O
O 9 individual reimbursement for contributions to the Committee. In a supplemental affidavit,
HI

10 Bremian denies reimbmsmg the corriplairiantrbr any <^^ Further,

11 counsel states that "to be clear, baaed upon oiirmterviews and reflected m me affidavits, no

12 payments were offered, made wre<«vedrnco^

13 congressional campaign."

14 B. Contributioni fat the Name of Another

15 The Act prom* Hts any person fhnn making or accepting a cciitri

16 auomerpenon. &e2U.S.C.§441f. lAewise.rjersonsareproUbitedfromloiowingly

17 permitting their names to be used to efitocontribudom

18 fira knowingly assistiiig to makrn^ SettiL; 11 CJJL § 110.4(bXlKiii).

CDUHSB! noted flat tiny conducted a nvtow of 1nlw>aB^ but conikirtlii! PPJIBBB AWJUBJMII and rooogdi to
wteb their invNliptioo," He did not ̂ ecmcilly identify the bosiimidoGimei^^itc^
ihaoopMeof biilDi>eetiajitioporfadiceiBiifliBQierBiByM^
thoeo of Bicuuan and the Bvlividuali he mUcltedi HeaMeelhathelDok jridapceftMallR80flHifiiHBinrtPfictlcci

nihii . -—J •-- »•_•»- _ —BAJM,! m*fA^ ^UM^^^H«|MMwneeeeii ano DwKHiaj a nooio 01 ne nveenajnoiii
Attnohmcnt
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1 The Act also makes ft unlawful for any candkU^polhk^connnittee, or other person to

2 knowingly accept or receive a contribution in the name of another. 2 U.S.C. § 441f.

3 In addition to potential liability for making cootributiois in the name of another, if

4 Bienmm used Dollar Ix)an Center fuids to re^

c£ 5 Loan Center would have violated the Act's prohibition on corporate contribution! or
rH

JjJ 6 alternatively, the Acts contribution limitations. See 2 U.S.C. §§ 441b(a) and 44la/
o&
,%! 7 Corporations are prohibited from irnkhig contributions from their general treasury funds in
<qr
*T 8 connection with any election of any *&*&$¥*£ for federal office, and nuididfftcs are similarly
O
° 9 prohibited from knowingly accepting such wmtributions. &«2U.S.C. §441X«).TheActalsof\

10 prohibits any officer or director of any co îoratioii from consenting to any contribution by uie

11 corporation. Stttd. In the alternative, ifBreonan used personal funds to reimburse conduits for

12 contributions, he would be liable for making excessive contnTnm'oru to the Conmuttee, in

13 violation of 2 U.S.C. § 441a. The Act also prohibits any candidate or political committee from

14 knowingly accepting any contribution in violation of the contribution limits set forth in section

15 441a of the Act 2 U.S.C. §§ 441<f).

16 The complaint's allegation in this rnatter that BrennanMappearaw to have reimbureed

17 contribution to Porter for Congress wpittniac^

18 coinplainairtforacoritritom'ontoPorte

19 in cash if he would make the contribution, and that (2) Bremian stated u '̂liis mom and dad and

bmalRcvaausSsrvke. llCJJL|110.1(g)L
_^^M« 4AA tft g— ---- •* • -
OK SpavUvB B H DOsMlDIB

faviolttiaBof2U£.C.|44kL iiCFJL<110.l(e),

Attachment
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1 ft bunch of omer people were doing it as wellw The complaim offers no mibnrudcm or finthand

2 knowledge regarding whether the alleged rdmburscnients to me Brcnnans ami trteCoocys

3 actually occurred, except to note mat the Brennans and me Cooeysinade contributions to Porter

4 for Congress at or about the same time that BitiinansoUdted trie cornpUdriant^trist each of them

5 made the maximum individual coritributionof$2300totheComimttee>noneofmemhadever

6 before contributed to a federal poUti(^ cornmittee, and the Cooeys reside m Soum Dakota

7 outside the candidate's Congressional district located in Nevada.

8 Thviesponsesaiidatridavh^lontheomerh8ridlBre very specific mat the Brennans and

9 the Cooeys did not receive retail* or advance payments from Brennan or Dollar Loan

10 Center for their contributions. Almou^itbiindearwhemertheinteindxrivestigati

11 conducted by counsel '"pludfid a review of bolfa the P™snriiil rwffHff ft^tbc P^M*

12 aadBremian's personal finandsJre<x>rds,jefii(pran.5fc^^

13 reviewed relevant records and interviewed Breanan and each of the alleged conduits and

14 d^tenrmicd that there was no evidence of any advance

15 condm'ts state m sworn affidavits that trjey did rjotrec»

16 from Brennan, Dollar Loan Center* or any other person or entity. We ha^e no information to me

17 contrary. Further, the complaint is not entirely clear oil exactly what Brerman allegedly told the

18 complainant. As described in the complaint, Bnrman's alleged statement mat ids parents and

19 other indrvidiiab'Nvere doing it as weU" is ambiguous m

1 20 otbenwooldbenialdiigcoiiriibur^

Attachment
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1 statement, it could mem that the others would be mai±ig contributions aiid reedving

2 xeirnburseinents from BICDDUL

3 Although the circumstances in this matter raiae questions as to wbetber reimbursements

4 of the contributions occuned,mHght(l) the lack of specific infb^

^ 5 true, would support the mference thai the alleged icimbiirsem
•H

rH 6 sworn denials; and (3) the representations of counsdrcgaiding the results of thekimemal
O
*& 7 investigation, the Commission has o^tennmed that there is no reason to beUeve that Charles
™
^ 8 Brcnnan and Dollar Loan Center, LLC, violated 2 U.S.C. §§ 441fv 441a(a), or 441b(a) by making
O
Q 9 contributions in the names of others or by making excessive or prohibited contributions to Porter
cH

10 for Congress; no reason to believe that Robert Brcnnan, Judi Brennan, Bruce Coocy, and Carla

11 Cooey violated 2 U.S.C. §44 If by krwwm^ypernutting Charles Bremian to make c^^

12 in their name to Porter for Congress; and no reason to believe triat Porter for Corigress and

13 OuissieHastie,m her ofBdal capacity as treasurer, violate

14 441b(a) by knowingly accepting contributions in the names of others or bx>wmgly accepting

15 excessive or prohibited contributions.

7 <y MUR 5504 (Karely). In MUR S5HtieCoininiukn made reaKn to bdieve finding
• _ __ -*• _ ^.« ___ • _ .•_ -• __ ̂ .ia __ — M — • _ •- ---- _ __ A — ••^•^M • ^^J ••la^^^^^^JM* ^^B^^^^ufl ^^^^h ^ î̂ ^H^wU^Al!^^» ^I^^^^^^ .̂̂ H^ •̂•laaV dL^•ivBaqsjiifoii ttno UK aiieaM raiBBiBiDBMB

ttaiajh in of te alkiBd cndote b« m
irimbOTedBnctfaeoMtributioiit Ite connate oflbredi»tei^

81 VBODDURBIDBflBK BaiBiflO vv IB fla^BBIOWBiv IBB 10 flsan^P BOvD wQDifl^lDF CB0G0 IDBQv OIK vv

Ua1faBtherfx»tribatioiiwairetaibur»B^
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FEDERAL ELECTION COMMISSION
WASHINGTON. D.C. 20463

Ralph J. Caccia, Esq.
Akerman Senterfit, LLP
The Victor Building flU Q 9 2010
750 9th Street NW

<N Suite 750
O Washington, DC 20001
Hi

2 RE: MUR6246
Porter for Congress and Chrissie Hastie,

in her official capacity as treasurer

Dear Mr. Caccia:

On January 28,2010, the Federal Election Commission ("the Commission") notified your
clients of a complaint alleging violations of certain sections of the Federal Election Campaign
Act of 1971, as amended. On July 14,2010, the Commission found, on the basis of the
information in the complaint, and information provided by your clients, that there is no reason to
believe that Porter for Congress, and Chrissie Hastie, in her official capacity as treasurer, violated
2 U.S.C. §§ 441f, 441a(f), or 441b(a). Accordingly, on July 29,2010, the Commission closed its
file in this matter.

Documents related to the case will be placed on the public record within 30 days. See
Statement of Policy Regarding Disclosure of Closed Enforcement and Related Files,
68 Fed. Reg. 70,426 (Dec. 18,2003) and Statement of Policy Regarding Placing First General
Counsel's Reports on the Public Record, 74 Fed. Reg. 66132 (Dec. 14,2009). The Factual and
Legal Analysis, which explains the Commission's findings, is enclosed for your information.

If you have any questions, please contact Wanda D. Brown, the attorney assigned to this
matter at (202) 694-1650.

Sincerely,

A" «v^WIVA/^^ L C^UtAV^jvG 0 re

Peter G.Blumberg
Assistant General Counsel

Enclosure
Factual and Legal Analysis



1 FEDERAL ELECTION COMMISSION
2
3 FACTUAL AND LEGAL ANALYSIS
4
5
6 RESPONDENTS: Charles C. Brennan MUR: 6246
7 Dollar Loan Center, LLC
8 Robert Brennan
9 Judi Brennan

10 Bruce Cooey
11 Carla Cooey
12 Porter for Congress and Chrissie Hastie,
13 in her official capacity as treasurer
14
15 I. INTRODUCTION

16 This matter was generated by a complaint Hied with the Federal Election Commission by

17 Kjelden Cundiff, alleging violations of the Federal Election Campaign Act of 1971, as amended

18 (the "Act"), by Charles Brennan, Dollar Loan Center, LLC, Robert Brennan, Judi Brennan,

19 Bruce Cooey, Carla Cooey, and Porter for Congress and Chrissie Hastie, in her official capacity

20 as treasurer.

21 II. FACTUAL AND LEGAL ANALYSIS

22 A. Background

23 The complainant is a former employee of Dollar Loan Center where he was the

24 company's National Director of Compliance. He claims that in October 2008, while employed

25 by Dollar Loan Center, his supervisor, Charles Brennan, called him and asked that he and his

26 wife each contribute $2,300 to the Porter for Congress Committee (the "Committee"), the

27 principal campaign committee of Jon C. Porter, Sr., a candidate in the 2008 election for United

28 States Representative from Nevada's 3d Congressional District. The contributions were to

29 coincide with a visit by candidate Porter to the Dollar Loan Center stores. Brennan allegedly

30 offered to reimburse the complainant and his wife with cash for the contributions, and also

Attachment
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MUR 6246 (Brennan, e/ a/.)
Factual and Legal Analysis
Page 2 of 7

1 indicated that other individuals, including Brennan's parents, "were doing it as well.11 The

2 complainant states that he told Brennan that he was not sure of the legality of the request, and

3 asked if he could instead draw a check from the corporate account for the contributions.

4 According to the complainant, Brennan explained that there is a "maximum amount that could be

5 donated by an individual'* and that "writing a check from the Dollar Loan Center operating

6 account was not an option." The complainant says that when he refused to make the

7 contributions, Brennan became agitated and stated that he would "get somebody else to do it.**

8 Although the complainant did not participate in the alleged reimbursement scheme, he

O 9 speculates that Brennan may have reimbursed his parents, Robert and Judi Brennan, as well as
O
*~* 10 Bruce Cooey, the president of Dollar Loan Center, and his wife, Carla Cooey, for contributions

1 1 they made to the Committee on October 21 and 27, 2008. ' The complainant infers that Charles

1 2 Brennan reimbursed these four individuals because Brennan had offered the complainant a

1 3 reimbursement for a contribution to the Committee during the same time period that the

14 individuals made their contributions, and because Brennan had told him that his parents and

1 5 other individuals "were doing it as well." In addition, the complainant questions whether the

16 alleged conduits would have contributed to the Committee absent a reimbursement because none

17 of the four individuals had ever before contributed to a federal political committee and each gave

1 8 the maximum individual contribution of $2,300 to the Committee. The complainant also deemed

1 9 suspicious the fact that Bruce and Carla Cooey reside in South Dakota, outside of the candidate's

1 Hie complainant learned of the contributions by reviewing Committee disclosure reports filed with the
Commission. Our own review of the Committee's disclosure reports reveals that no other contributor to the
Committee identified as being a Dollar Loan Center employee.

Attachment
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1 Congressional district located in Nevada. Finally, the complainant states that the Committee's

2 disclosure reports incorrectly name Robert and Judi Brennan as owners of Dollar Loan Center.2

3 In responses to the complaint, submitted on February 22, 2010, and supplemented on

4 April 30, 20 1 0 in response to a request for clarification, counsel for Charles Brennan, Dollar

5 Loan Center, and the alleged conduits claims that the allegations are speculative, and likely the
L/t

£* 6 retaliatory action of a disgruntled former employee.3 Counsel explains that Charles Brennan has
T*\

o
#> 7 a history of financially supporting candidates aligned with his business interests, and that not
r*i

8 only did Brennan himself make the maximum allowable contribution to Porter's Committee, he

9 also encouraged his family, friends, and business partners to contribute to the Committee if they

10 had the financial ability to do so. Brennan admits that he asked the complainant to contribute to

1 1 the Committee, but denies that he offered to reimburse the complainant with either personal or

1 2 Dollar Loan Center funds.4

1 3 Counsel also states in his original response that his firm conducted an internal

14 investigation into the allegations and concluded that neither Brennan nor Dollar Loan Center

1 5 reimbursed the conduits. In the supplemental response, which was submitted in response to a

1 6 request for clarification, counsel stated that the investigation included interviews with Charles

2 In its 2008 Post-General Election Report, the Committee notes that employer information for Robert and Judi
Brennan was "requested." In an amendment to that report filed in January 2009, the employer is listed as "Dollar
Loan - owner" even though Brennan's parents do not own and are not employed by Dollar Loan Center. The
Committee does not address this apparent mistake in its response to the complaint.

3 Respondents claim that after the complainant resigned from Dollar Loan Center in October 2009, he attempted
to extort money from Brennan, and began filing "complaints against the company with various institutions,
including MUR 6246 with the FEC." Respondents did not specify the types of complaints, and this Office could
find no publicly available information regarding complaints filed with any other agency or institution.

The response also addressed the complainant's claim that the contributions made by Bruce and Carla Cooey are
suspicious by virtue of the fact that the Cooeys are not residents of Nevada, stating that Federal candidates often
solicit and receive contributions from outside of the relevant district, and that such contributions are not in violation
of the Act.

Attachment
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1 Brennan and the alleged conduits, as well as a review of relevant business documents and

2 records.5

3 The original response included sworn affidavits from the alleged conduits stating that

4 they had not been "offered reimbursement" for their contributions to the Committee. In response

5 to the request for clarification, the conduits filed supplemental affidavits stating that not only had

CO
O 6 they not been "offered reimbursement" for the contributions, but also that they did not "receive"
*H
CD 7 advance payment or reimbursement for their contributions to the Committee from any person or

qr 8 entity. In his own original sworn affidavit, Charles Brennan attests that he did not offer any
<qr
O 9 individual reimbursement for contributions to the Committee. In a supplemental affidavit,
O
f-l 10 Brennan denies reimbursing the complainant for any contribution to the Committee. Further,

11 counsel states that "to be clear, based upon our interviews and reflected in the affidavits, no

12 payments were offered, made or received in connection to a donation to Mr. Porter's

13 congressional campaign."

14 B. Contributions in the Name of Another

15 The Act prohibits any person from making or accepting a contribution in the name of

16 another person. See 2 U.S.C. § 441 f. Likewise, persons are prohibited from knowingly

17 permitting their names to be used to effect contributions made in the name of another person and

18 from knowingly assisting in making such contributions. See id; 11 C.F.R. § 110.4(b)(lXiii)-

5 Counsel noted that they conducted a review of "relevant, but confidential, business documents and records to
assist in their investigation." He did not specifically identify the business documents and records reviewed during
the course of his investigation or indicate whether they reviewed the financial records of Dollar Loan Center or
those of Brennan and the individuals he solicited. He states that he took guidance from "Recommended Practices
for Companies and Counsel." This Office reviewed the document, approved by the Board of Regents, American
College of Trial Lawyers, in February 2008. The document offers guidance on organizing and conducting
investigations into business practices, including organizational strategies, choosing relevant documents, interviewing
witnesses, and building a record of the investigation.

Attachment
Page 4 of7



MUR 6246 (Brennan, et a/.)
Factual and Legal Analysis
Page 5 of 7

1 The Act also makes it unlawful for any candidate, political committee, or other person to

2 knowingly accept or receive a contribution in the name of another. 2 U.S.C. § 441 f.

3 In addition to potential liability for making contributions in the name of another, if

4 Brennan used Dollar Loan Center funds to reimburse the contributions, Brennan and the Dollar

5 Loan Center would have violated the Act's prohibition on corporate contributions or

£j 6 alternatively, the Act's contribution limitations. See 2 U.S.C. §§ 441b(a) and 44la.6

•H
O 7 Corporations are prohibited from making contributions from their general treasury funds in
oo
™ 8 connection with any election of any candidate for federal office, and candidates are similarly

*8T
Q 9 prohibited from knowingly accepting such contributions. See 2 U.S.C. § 441b(a). The Act also
O
*"* 10 prohibits any officer or director of any corporation from consenting to any contribution by the

11 corporation. See id. In the alternative, if Brennan used personal fluids to reimburse conduits for

12 contributions, he would be liable for making excessive contributions to the Committee, in

13 violation of 2 U.S.C. § 44la. The Act also prohibits any candidate or political committee from

14 knowingly accepting any contribution in violation of the contribution limits set forth in section

15 441a of the Act. 2 U.S.C. §§ 441a(f).

16 The complaint's allegation in this matter that Brennan "appears" to have reimbursed

17 contributions to Porter for Congress is premised on the assertions that (1) Brennan solicited the

18 complainant for a contribution to Porter for Congress and offered to reimburse the complainant

19 in cash if he would make the contribution, and that (2) Brennan stated that "his mom and dad and

As a limited liability company, Dollar Loan Center is subject to the prohibition against corporate contributions or
the Act's contributions limitations, depending on whether it elects to be treated as a partnership or corporation by the
Internal Revenue Service. 11 C.F.R. § 110.1(g). If treated as a partnership, and if it reimbursed the alleged conduit
contributions in excess of $2,300, it is possible that Dollar Loan Center made an excessive contribution to the
Committee in violation of 2 U.S.C. § 441a. 11 C.F.R. § 110.1(e). If Dollar Loan Center elected tax treatment as a
corporation, it may have made a corporate contribution in violation of 2 U.S.C. § 441b(a).
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1 a bunch of other people were doing it as well." The complaint offers no information or firsthand

2 knowledge regarding whether the alleged reimbursements to the Brennans and the Cooeys

3 actually occurred, except to note that the Brennans and the Cooeys made contributions to Porter

4 for Congress at or about the same time that Brennan solicited the complainant, that each of them

5 made the maximum individual contribution of $2,300 to the Committee, none of them had ever

Q 6 before contributed to a federal political committee, and the Cooeys reside in South Dakota,
«H
O 7 outside the candidate's Congressional district located in Nevada.
oc?
™ 8 The responses and affidavits, on the other hand, are very specific that the Brennans and

<qr
Q 9 the Cooeys did not receive reimbursements or advance payments from Brennan or Dollar Loan
O
*~< 10 Center for their contributions. Although it is unclear whether the internal investigation

11 conducted by counsel included a review of both the financial records of the Dollar Loan Center

12 and Brennan's personal financial records, see supra n. 5, counsel has represented that they

13 reviewed relevant records and interviewed Brennan and each of the alleged conduits and

14 determined that there was no evidence of any advance payments or reimbursements, and the

15 conduits state in sworn affidavits that they did not receive an advance payment or reimbursement

16 from Brennan, Dollar Loan Center, or any other person or entity. We have no information to the

17 contrary. Further, the complaint is not entirely clear on exactly what Brennan allegedly told the

18 complainant. As described in the complaint, Brennan's alleged statement that his parents and

19 other individuals "were doing it as well" is ambiguous in that the statement could mean that the

20 others would be making contributions or, as the complainant appears to have interpreted the
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1 statement, it could mean that the others would be making contributions and receiving

2 reimbursements from Brennan.7

3 Although the circumstances in this matter raise questions as to whether reimbursements

4 of the contributions occurred, in light (1) the lack of specific information in the complaint that, if

5 true, would support the inference that the alleged reimbursements, in fact, occurred; (2) the
a>
O 6 sworn denials; and (3) the representations of counsel regarding the results of their internal
HI
O00 7 investigation, the Commission has determined that there is no reason to believe that Charles
™
<? 8 Brennan and Dollar Loan Center, LLC, violated 2 U.S.C. §§ 44If, 441a(a), or 441b(a) by making
«r
2 9 contributions in the names of others or by making excessive or prohibited contributions to Porter
rH

10 for Congress; no reason to believe that Robert Brennan, Judi Brennan, Bruce Cooey, and Carla

11 Cooey violated 2 U.S.C. § 441f by knowingly permitting Charles Brennan to make contributions

12 in their name to Porter for Congress; and no reason to believe that Porter for Congress and

13 Chrissie Hastie, in her official capacity as treasurer, violated 2 U.S.C. §§ 44If, 441a(f), or

14 441b(a) by knowingly accepting contributions in the names of others or knowingly accepting

15 excessive or prohibited contributions.

Cf. MUR 5504 (Karoly). In MUR 5504, the Commission made reason to believe findings, authorized an
investigation into the alleged reimbursement scheme, and ultimately entered into a conciliation agreement with the
respondents even though all of the alleged conduits but one submitted identical affidavits claiming they had not been
reimbursed for the contributions. The complaint offered what appeared to be firsthand knowledge of die violations,
claiming to have witnessed a reimbursement made to an employee and to have seen company checks made out to
alleged conduits, and claiming that one of the alleged conduits, who had not submitted an affidavit, had admitted to
him that her contribution was reimbursed.
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FEDERAL ELECTION COMMISSION
WASHINGTON. O.C. 20463

CERTIFIED MAIL
RETURN RECEIPT REQUESTED

™ AUG 92010
Q Kjelden Cundiff
O |
* Spring Hill, FL 34608
*T
<qr RE: MUR6246
O Charles Brennan, et al
2 Dear Mr. Cundiff:

On July 14,2010, the Federal Election Commission ("the Commission") reviewed the
allegations in your complaint dated January 5,2010, and found that on the basis of the
information provided in your complaint, and information provided by the Respondents in this
matter, there is no reason to believe that Charles Brennan and Dollar Loan Center, LLC, violated
2 U.S.C. §§ 441 f, 441 (a) or 441b(a), or that Robert Brennan, Judi Brennan, Bruce Cooey or Carla
Cooey violated 2 U.S.C. § 44If. In addition, the Commission found that there was no reason to
believe that Porter for Congress, and Chrissie Hastie, in her official capacity as treasurer, violated
2 U.S.C. §§ 44If, 441a(f), or 441b(a). Accordingly, on July 29,2010, the Commission closed
the file in this matter.

Documents related to the case will be placed on the public record within 30 days. See
Statement of Policy Regarding Disclosure of Closed Enforcement and Related Files,
68 Fed. Reg. 70,426 (Dec. 18,2003) and Statement of Policy Regarding Placing First General
Counsel's Reports on the Public Record, 74 Fed. Reg. 66132 (Dec. 14,2009). The Factual and
Legal Analysis, which more fully explains the Commission's findings is enclosed.



The Federal Election Campaign Act of 1971, as amended, allows a complainant to seek
judicial review of the Commission's dismissal of this action. See 2 U.S.C. § 437g(a)(8).

Sincerely,

r/i
O>
OQ Enclosure
co Factual and Legal Analysis

O
O

Peter G. Blumberg
Assistant General Counsel



1 FEDERAL ELECTION COMMISSION
2
3 FACTUAL AND LEGAL ANALYSIS
4
5
6 RESPONDENTS: Charles C. Brennan MUR: 6246
7 Dollar Loan Center, LLC
8 Robert Brennan
9 Judi Brennan

10 Bruce Cooey
*5T 11 Carla Cooey
0> 12 Porter for Congress and Chrissie Hastie,
O 13 in her official capacity as treasurer
^?\Q 14oo
^ 15 I. INTRODUCTION
1
*? 16 This matter was generated by a complaint filed with the Federal Election Commission by
O
2 17 Kjelden Cundiff, alleging violations of the Federal Election Campaign Act of 1971, as amended

18 (the "Act"), by Charles Brennan, Dollar Loan Center, LLC, Robert Brennan, Judi Brennan,

19 Bruce Cooey, Carla Cooey, and Porter for Congress and Chrissie Hastie, in her official capacity

20 as treasurer.

21 II. FACTUAL AND LEGAL ANALYSIS

22 A. Background

23 The complainant is a former employee of Dollar Loan Center where he was the

24 company's National Director of Compliance. He claims that in October 2008, while employed

25 by Dollar Loan Center, his supervisor, Charles Brennan, called him and asked that he and his

26 wife each contribute $2,300 to the Porter for Congress Committee (the "Committee"), the

27 principal campaign committee of Jon C. Porter, Sr., a candidate in the 2008 election for United

28 States Representative from Nevada's 3d Congressional District. The contributions were to

29 coincide with a visit by candidate Porter to the Dollar Loan Center stores. Brennan allegedly

30 offered to reimburse the complainant and his wife with cash for the contributions, and also
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1 indicated that other individuals, including Brennan1 s parents, "were doing it as well." The

2 complainant states that he told Brennan that he was not sure of the legality of the request, and

3 asked if he could instead draw a check from the corporate account for the contributions.

4 According to the complainant, Brennan explained that there is a "maximum amount that could be

5 donated by an individual" and that "writing a check from the Dollar Loan Center operating
L/i

a> 6 account was not an option." The complainant says that when he refused to make the
O
° 7 contributions, Brennan became agitated and stated that he would "get somebody else to do it."
CN
cj- 8 Although the complainant did not participate in the alleged reimbursement scheme, he
<tf
© 9 speculates that Brennan may have reimbursed his parents, Robert and Judi Brennan, as well as

10 Bruce Cooey, the president of Dollar Loan Center, and his wife, Carla Cooey, for contributions

11 they made to the Committee on October 21 and 27,2008.! The complainant infers that Charles

12 Brennan reimbursed these four individuals because Brennan had offered the complainant a

13 reimbursement for a contribution to the Committee during the same time period that the

14 individuals made their contributions, and because Brennan had told him that his parents and

15 other individuals "were doing it as well." In addition, the complainant questions whether the

16 alleged conduits would have contributed to the Committee absent a reimbursement because none

17 of the four individuals had ever before contributed to a federal political committee and each gave

18 the maximum individual contribution of $2,300 to the Committee. The complainant also deemed

19 suspicious the fact that Bruce and Carla Cooey reside in South Dakota, outside of the candidate's

1 The complainant learned of the contributions by reviewing Committee disclosure reports filed with the
Commission. Our own review of the Committee's disclosure reports reveals that no other contributor to the
Committee identified as being a Dollar Loan Center employee.
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1 Congressional district located in Nevada. Finally, the complainant states that the Committee's

2 disclosure reports incorrectly name Robert and Judi Brennan as owners of Dollar Loan Center.2

3 In responses to the complaint, submitted on February 22,2010, and supplemented on

4 April 30,2010 in response to a request for clarification, counsel for Charles Brennan, Dollar

5 Loan Center, and the alleged conduits claims that the allegations are speculative, and likely the
(i>
& 6 retaliatory action of a disgruntled former employee.3 Counsel explains that Charles Brennan has
O
^ 7 a history of financially supporting candidates aligned with his business interests, and that not
r-j
ST 8 only did Brennan himself make the maximum allowable contribution to Porter's Committee, he
<tf
~? 9 also encouraged his family, friends, and business partners to contribute to the Committee if they
r-l

10 had the financial ability to do so. Brennan admits that he asked the complainant to contribute to

11 the Committee, but denies that he offered to reimburse the complainant with either personal or

12 Dollar Loan Center funds.4

13 Counsel also states in his original response that his firm conducted an internal

14 investigation into the allegations and concluded that neither Brennan nor Dollar Loan Center

15 reimbursed the conduits. In the supplemental response, which was submitted in response to a

16 request for clarification, counsel stated that the investigation included interviews with Charles

2 In its 2008 Post-General Election Report, the Committee notes that employer information for Robert and Judi
Brennan was "requested." In an amendment to that report filed in January 2009, the employer is listed as "Dollar
Loan - owner" even though Brennan's parents do not own and are not employed by Dollar Loan Center. The
Committee does not address this apparent mistake in its response to the complaint.
3 Respondents claim that after the complainant resigned from Dollar Loan Center in October 2009, he attempted
to extort money from Brennan, and began filing "complaints against the company with various institutions,
including MUR 6246 with the FEC." Respondents did not specify the types of complaints, and this Office could
find no publicly available information regarding complaints filed with any other agency or institution.

4 The response also addressed the complainant's claim that the contributions made by Bruce and Carla Cooey are
suspicious by virtue of the fact that the Cooeys are not residents of Nevada, stating that Federal candidates often
solicit and receive contributions from outside of the relevant district, and that such contributions are not in violation
of the Act.
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1 Brennan and the alleged conduits, as well as a review of relevant business documents and

2 records.5

3 The original response included sworn affidavits from the alleged conduits stating that

4 they had not been "offered reimbursement" for their contributions to the Committee. In response

5 to the request for clarification, the conduits filed supplemental affidavits stating that not only had

<yj 6 they not been "offered reimbursement" for the contributions, but also that they did not "receive"
O
O 7 advance payment or reimbursement for their contributions to the Committee from any person or
00
™ 8 entity. In his own original sworn affidavit, Charles Brennan attests that he did not offer any
«JT
O 9 individual reimbursement for contributions to the Committee. In a supplemental affidavit,
O
*H 10 Brennan denies reimbursing the complainant for any contribution to the Committee. Further,

11 Qounsel states that "to be clear, based upon our interviews and reflected in the affidavits, no

12 payments were offered, made or received in connection to a donation to Mr. Porter's

13 congressional campaign."

14 B. Contributions in the Name of Another

15 The Act prohibits any person from making or accepting a contribution in the name of

16 another person. See 2 U.S.C. § 44If. Likewise, persons are prohibited from knowingly

17 permitting their names to be used to effect contributions made in the name of another person and

18 from knowingly assisting in making such contributions. See id; 11 C.F.R. § 110.4(b)(l)(iii).

5 Counsel noted that they conducted a review of "relevant, but confidential, business documents and records to
assist in their investigation.*1 He did not specifically identify the business documents and records reviewed during
the course of his investigation or indicate whether they reviewed the financial records of Dollar Loan Center or
those of Brennan and the individuals he solicited. He states that he took guidance from "Recommended Practices
for Companies and Counsel." This Office reviewed the document, approved by the Board of Regents, American
College of Trial Lawyers, in February 2008. The document offers guidance on organizing and conducting
investigations into business practices, including organizational strategies, choosing relevant documents, interviewing
witnesses, and building a record of the investigation.
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1 The Act also makes it unlawful for any candidate, political committee, or other person to

2 knowingly accept or receive a contribution in the name of another. 2 U.S.C. § 441 f.

3 In addition to potential liability for making contributions in the name of another, if

4 Brennan used Dollar Loan Center funds to reimburse the contributions, Brennan and the Dollar

5 Loan Center would have violated the Act's prohibition on corporate contributions or
<# ,
<y> 6 alternatively, the Act's contribution limitations. See 2 U.S.C. §§ 441 b(a) and 441 a.
O
O 7 Corporations are prohibited from making contributions from their general treasury funds in

(%j
^ 8 connection with any election of any candidate for federal office, and candidates are similarly
qr
O 9 prohibited from knowingly accepting such contributions. See 2 U.S.C. § 441b(a). The Act also
O
r*1 10 prohibits any officer or director of any corporation from consenting to any contribution by the

11 corporation. See id. In the alternative, if Brennan used personal funds to reimburse conduits for

12 contributions, he would be liable for making excessive contributions to the Committee, in

13 violation of 2 U.S.C. § 441 a. The Act also prohibits any candidate or political committee from

14 knowingly accepting any contribution in violation of the contribution limits set forth in section

15 441a of the Act. 2 U.S.C. §§ 441a(f).

16 The complaint's allegation in this matter that Brennan "appears" to have reimbursed

17 contributions to Porter for Congress is premised on the assertions that (1) Brennan solicited the

18 complainant for a contribution to Porter for Congress and offered to reimburse the complainant

19 in cash if he would make the contribution, and that (2) Brennan stated that "his mom and dad and

As a limited liability company, Dollar Loan Center is subject to the prohibition against corporate contributions or
the Act's contributions limitations, depending on whether it elects to be treated as a partnership or corporation by the
Internal Revenue Service. 11 C.F.R. § 110.1(g). If treated as a partnership, and if it reimbursed the alleged conduit
contributions in excess of $2,300, it is possible that Dollar Loan Center made an excessive contribution to the
Committee in violation of 2 U.S.C. § 441a. 11 C.F.R. § 110. l(e). If Dollar Loan Center elected tax treatment as a
corporation, it may have made a corporate contribution in violation of 2 U.S.C. § 441b(a).

Attachment
Page 5 of7



MUR 6246 (Brennan, et a/.)
Factual and Legal Analysis
Page 6 of7

1 a bunch of other people were doing it as well." The complaint offers no information or firsthand

2 knowledge regarding whether the alleged reimbursements to the Brennans and the Cooeys

3 actually occurred, except to note that the Brennans and the Cooeys made contributions to Porter

4 for Congress at or about the same time that Brennan solicited the complainant, that each of them

5 made the maximum individual contribution of $2,300 to the Committee, none of them had ever

0, 6 before contributed to a federal political committee, and the Cooeys reside in South Dakota,

0
O 7 outside the candidate's Congressional district located in Nevada.
CO

™ 8 The responses and affidavits, on the other hand, are very specific that the Brennans and

*3T
Q 9 the Cooeys did not receive reimbursements or advance payments from Brennan or Dollar Loan
0
*~* 10 Center for their contributions. Although it is unclear whether the internal investigation

11 conducted by counsel included a review of both the financial records of the Dollar Loan Center

12 and Brennan's personal financial records, see supra n. 5, counsel has represented that they

13 reviewed relevant records and interviewed Brennan and each of the alleged conduits and

14 determined that there was no evidence of any advance payments or reimbursements, and the

15 conduits state in sworn affidavits that they did not receive an advance payment or reimbursement

16 from Brennan, Dollar Loan Center, or any other person or entity. We have no information to the

17 contrary. Further, the complaint is not entirely clear on exactly what Brennan allegedly told the

18 complainant. As described in the complaint, Brennan's alleged statement that his parents and

19 other individuals "were doing it as well" is ambiguous in that the statement could mean that the

20 others would be making contributions or, as the complainant appears to have interpreted the
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1 statement, it could mean that the others would be making contributions and receiving

2 reimbursements from Brennan.7

3 Although the circumstances in this matter raise questions as to whether reimbursements

4 of the contributions occurred, in light (1) the lack of specific information in the complaint that, if

5 true, would support the inference that the alleged reimbursements, in fact, occurred; (2) the

OQ 6 sworn denials; and (3) the representations of counsel regarding the results of their internal
Hi

G> 7 investigation, the Commission has determined that there is no reason to believe that Charles
00
^ 8 Brennan and Dollar Loan Center, LLC, violated 2 U.S.C. §§ 44If, 441a(a), or 441b(a) by making
<ff
0 9 contributions in the names of others or by making excessive or prohibited contributions to Porter
O
WtfJ

10 for Congress; no reason to believe that Robert Brennan, Judi Brennan, Bruce Cooey, and Carla

11 Cooey violated 2 U.S.C. § 441 f by knowingly permitting Charles Brennan to make contributions

12 in their name to Porter for Congress; and no reason to believe that Porter for Congress and

13 Chrissie Hastie, in her official capacity as treasurer, violated 2 U.S.C. §§ 44If, 441a(f), or

14 441 b(a) by knowingly accepting contributions in the names of others or knowingly accepting

15 excessive or prohibited contributions.

Cf. MUR 5504 (Karoly). In MUR 5504, the Commission made reason to believe findings, authorized an
investigation into the alleged reimbursement scheme, and ultimately entered into a conciliation agreement with the
respondents even though all of the alleged conduits but one submitted identical affidavits claiming they had not been
reimbursed for the contributions. The complaint offered what appeared to be firsthand knowledge of the violations,
claiming to have witnessed a reimbursement made to an employee and to have seen company checks made out to
alleged conduits, and claiming that one of the alleged conduits, who had not submitted an affidavit, had admitted to
him mat her contribution was reimbursed.
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